
 

 

Request for Proposals for  
AGREED UPON PROCEDURES REPORTS 

 
Response to Written Questions: 

1. What is the desired timeline for report completion?  All reports should be submitted by May 30, 2021. 
 

2. Are there any special qualities you are looking for in the firm you select?  A successful report for each 
of these areas would provide evidence as to the efficacy of the designed controls and the 
implementation of said controls.  Any firm that has familiarity with internal controls and efficient 
procedures for each of the three areas would be qualified.  Experience with 1937 Act pension plans 
may be helpful, but is not required for proposal submission. 
 

3. For both Benefits and Customer Service procedures, would it be helpful to cost the proposal by 
employer, how many employers would be covered?  There is no need to cost them separately, as the 
focus of the procedures will be SBCERA process, not the process of any particular participating 
employer. 
 

4. For the Accuracy of Member Information procedures, for each participating employer tested, would a 
sample size of 25 be adequate and would one quarter of payroll data be adequate?  The focus of the 
procedures in the Accuracy of Member Information will focus on the SBCERA process to collect and 
validate member data as it is supplied by participating employers.  There may be some additional 
procedures to ensure that employers are properly supplying payroll data for these members and 
updating member status when there is no longer any payroll data to report.  For this purpose, a 
population of up to 25 for three employers, at a moment in time, would be adequate to evaluate the 
process. 
 

5. For the Death Benefit Process procedures, would one year be sufficient?  Yes, one year would provide 
adequate data to trace the SBCERA process for effectiveness as it relates to both the death of retirees 
and the subsequent calculations for the death of active members. 
 

6. For the Financial and Investment Operations procedures, approximately how many wire transfers are 
processed in a year and are pension distributions included in wire transfers?  SBCERA processes 
approximately 1,300 wires per year.  These wires cover mostly investment activity – wires are sent for 
capital calls and management fees.  There are approximately 12 wires per year that move money from 
our custodial account to our operation account at a local bank for payments to retirees.  The actual 
payment to retirees is not within the scope of this procedure.  The procedure would examine the validity 
of the payments made to SBCERA’s investments and fund managers, including any commitment 
balances authorized by the Board of Retirement (Board).  These wires are processed using the 
electronic module offered by our custodian, State Street Bank & Trust. 
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7. What period is to be covered by these AUPs?  The period will vary for each procedure and based upon 
the testing methodology proposed by an individual firm.  In general, the Death Benefit Process 
procedure will span approximately one year, as the activity does not occur on a daily basis.  For the 
remaining two procedures, the process is practiced daily; therefore, a shorter testing period may be 
warranted.  
 

8. What is the proposed budget for this proposal?  Per the Board-approved budget for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021, “staff has budgeted $45,000 for “Agreed Upon Procedures” accounting work.  
The Agreed Upon Procedures will allow SBCERA to move forward with the Internal Audit Plan, but in a 
different way, using external resources on a contract basis.”  Should we require additional budget, we 
will make that request at the time a recommendation is made regarding the firm or firms with whom to 
contract for the AUPs. 
 

9. Please provide a list of firms that have submitted a notification of interest in response to this RFP.  
SBCERA has received indications of interest and/or questions from four accounting firms to date.  We 
decline to provide the names of such firms at this time.   

  


